_"\

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reportl ng Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations
On-lineat http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/wssd/prepcom/index.html

Vol. 10 No. 49

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Thursday, 6 April 2000

WSSD+5 PREPCOM HIGHLIGHTS:
WEDNESDAY, 5 APRIL 2000
In morning and evening sessions, Working Group | discussed
Commitment 1, on an enabling environment for social development.
Working Group 11 met in the morning and afternoon to continue
deliberations on the draft political declaration. Inthe afternoon,
Working Group |1 met to debate Commitment 3, on employment.

WORKING GROUP |

COMMITMENT 1. ENABLING SOCIAL DEVELOP-
MENT: The EU proposed omitting paragraph 8, on capacity building
to address devel oping country obstaclesto participating in the global -
izing economy, via, inter alia, technology transfer and financial
resources. Delegates agreed on 8(a), on stimulating and strengthening
industrialization in devel oping countries. The US, with CANADA,
proposed alternative language on 8(b), on facilitating capacities
through appropriate technol ogy transfer, and supported an EU
amendment to ensure the soundness and transparency of developing
country economies. The G-77/CHINA suggested del eting the word
transparency and inserting financial and other resources before
appropriate technology. Chair Maguieiranoted that thisrefersto
development and private sector financing, and proposed that the
clause on transparency refer to both domestic and international
economic environments. The G-77/CHINA disagreed with the
domestic reference, whilethe US, the EU and CANADA preferred
reference to devel opment assi stance.

In 8(c), delegates debated |anguage on accessto international
markets and trade barriers. The EU recommended del eting the text,
but accepted aUS proposal on increasing market accessfor devel-
oping countries and negotiating elimination of tariffsand non-tariff
barriers. Chair Maguieira proposed text merging proposalsfrom the
G-77/CHINA, on other protectionist measures, from NORWAY, on
the negotiated elimination or reduction of barriers, and from JAPAN,
on barriersthat hinder trade of devel oping countriesand countries
with economiesintransition. JAPAN also preferred referenceto
unjustifiably hindering trade. The EU opposed and the text was | eft
pending. The G-77/CHINA proposed, and the EU and US opposed,
deleting theword “ negotiated.” The G-77/CHINA accepted reten-
tion, with the addition of areferenceto barriers according to the
multilateral trading system.

In 8(d), on accel erating devel oping country accession to the
WTO, JAPAN proposed reference to existing rules and multilateral
assistance. Del egates accepted thisformulation rather than an EU
proposal on WTO rules. The US and the EU, agreed to aG-77/

CHINA amendment on accession following existing multilateral
trading rules. Delegates agreed to these amendments. In 8(e), on
measures for building devel oping countries’ capacity to trade and
participate effectively in international economic fora, the EU
proposed text on providing technical assistance under the auspices of
WTO, UNCTAD and others. Del egates agreed to amerged formul a-
tion, including G-77/CHINA language on providing technical assis-
tance to devel oping countriesto participatein international trade
negotiations such asthe WTO dispute settlement mechanism.

In paragraph 9, on refraining fromillegal unilateral actions, the
USand the G-77/CHINA highlighted text that the group did not
negotiate. In paragraph 10, whichincludesalist of measuresto
reduce the negative impacts on social devel opment of international
financial turbulence, theHOLY SEE specified economic and social
development. The US supported language on “ by such possible
policesas’ to introducethelist. The G-77/CHINA preferred
“through.” No consensuswasreached. In9(a), onimproved measures
to address short-term capital flow volatility, the G-77/CHINA
supported, and JAPAN, theUS and the EU opposed, CANADA'stext
advocating atemporary debt standstill. The EU called for referenceto
improving preventative measures to address excessive volatility. The
G-77/CHINA proposed text listing improved preventative measures,
including atemporary debt standstill. Thetext remains bracketed.

In 10 (b), delegates considered proposalsfrom the US, the EU and
MEXICO onfinancial speculation. The G-77/CHINA, with the
REPUBLIC OF KOREA, amended the US proposal inserting refer-
enceto devel oping, strengthening and enforcing regulatory frame-
worksfor monitoring financial operations. The HOLY SEE proposed,
and the EU and US opposed, reference to reducing negative impacts.
The EU called for improving transparency for financial flows. On
text proposed by MEXICO, Chair Maquieirasuggested reference to
international financial organizations. The EU preferred referenceto
transparency instead of communication. The text remains bracketed.
The group agreed on minor amendments to EU-proposed text for
10(c), on providing technical assistance to strengthen domestic
capital markets and ensure their proper regulation by national govern-
ments. Due to redundancy, the group deleted an EU-proposed 10(c)
bis on protective measuresfor basic social services. In10(d), on
strengthening economic policy institutions, no consensuswas
reached on G-77/CHINA text on capital and finance.

JAPAN, with the US, declared paragraph 11 unnecessary because
arecommendation on resourcesfor social development forwarded to
theHigh-Level International | ntergovernmental Event on Financing

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by Tonya Barnes <tonya@iisd.org>, Richard Campbell <richard@iisd.org>, NabihaZz. Z.
Megateli <nmegateli @iisd.org> and Gretchen Sidhu <gsidhu@igc.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James
"Kimo" Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by L eilaMead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donorsof the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and L andscape (SAEFL), the United Kingdom
Department for International Development (DFI D) and the European Commission (DG-ENV.) General Support for the Bulletin during 2000 is provided by thethe German Federal
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministry of Environment of
Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairsand Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the
Government of Australia, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and BP Amoco. Specific funding for coverage of the
WSSD+5 process has been provided by United Kingdom DFID. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206.
11SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth
Negotiations Bulletin arethose of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect theviewsof |1SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-
commercial publicationsonly and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use thismaterial incommercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic
versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.cal/linkages. The satellite image was taken above
New York ©2000 The Living Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Thursday, 6 April 2000

Vol. 10 No. 49 Page 2

for Development would not arriveintimefor inclusion in the agenda.
Chair Maguieirastressed that arecommendation would avert the need
for the Special Session to addressthisissue. The paragraphis pending.

WORKING GROUP |1

COMMITMENT 3: EMPLOYMENT: Following consultations
with the Bureau, del egates agreed that language in the chapeaux of the
Commitments should reiterate Copenhagen text, rather than go beyond
it. In paragraph 37, referring tothe ILO’s Global Programme of Decent
Work, the G-77/CHINA proposed |anguage on promoting opportuni-
tiesfor decent and productive work, and inserted text agreed by CSD-
38referring to, inter alia, prohibitionson child and forced labor. The
EU, supported by SWITZERLAND, CANADA and the US, argued
for maintaining the decent work reference, which includes social
protection. When the G-77/CHINA asked how aconcept could be
considered a strategy, the EU suggested text on acomprehensive
programme of decent work. Delegates agreed to language in 37bis
inviting the ILOto facilitate a coordinated exchange of best practices
among employment policies. NEW ZEALAND expressed concern
that thisnot divert scarce resources.

Delegatesfaced myriad proposals: paragraph 38, onthelLO'srole,
the quality of work and employment; 38(a), on ratification of labor
conventions; and 38(b), on implementation of the ILO Declaration on
Fundamental Principlesand Rightsat work and instrumentson
migrant workers. The EU proposed one paragraph on ratifying and
implementing core IL O conventions on: workers' rights of association
and collective bargaining; eliminating forced and child abor; and
ending occupational discrimination. NEW ZEALAND, with
CANADA, suggested promoting observance or considering ratifica-
tion. NORWAY suggested incorporating the Convention on the Elimi-
nation of the Worst Forms of Child Labor. The G-77/CHINA, with the
US, preferred different instrumentsin separate sub-paragraphs. He
alsoinserted text on employment levels, promoting therole of ILO and
WSSD-identified conventionsfor, inter alia, employment rights of
women and indigenous people.

In 38(c), the EU advocated universal ratification and implementa-
tion of the child labor convention, whilethe G-77/CHINA, with the
US, proposed considering ratification. The USand CANADA
supported Chair Richelle'sadditional text stressing participationinthe
ILO global campaign on child labor. TUNISIA, opposed by PAKI-
STAN, proposed deleting mention of the convention’sratification .
Delegates agreed to the EU’ s additional 38(d), onimproving working
conditions and promoting safe and healthy work settings. In 38(e), the
G-77/CHINA proposed reference to ILO instruments for migrant
workers. Discussions centered on: ongoing revisions of pertinent ILO
instruments; an EU proposal to consider replacing the text with para-
graph 41, on relevant national and international instrumentsto protect
migrant workers; and proposals by SWITZERLAND and NORWAY
to support ILO and other effortsto address, analyze and report on the
social dimensionsof global trade.

WORKING GROUP |11

Working Group 111 met in the morning to resume discussion of the
draft political declaration. In paragraph 3, delegates agreed to
language proposed by the EU on recognition of the enabling environ-
ment required by social devel opment. Del egates debated the impact of
social policies sincethe WSSD, with EGY PT calling for adistinction
between positive and productiveimpacts. The EU proposed arefer-
ence to the productive impacts of effective social policies, and the G-
77/CHINA preferred text on the positive impact of productive and
effective socia policies. Thetext remains bracketed.

In paragraph 4, del egates agreed that devel oping countries, particu-
larly LDCs, face obstaclesto further integration and full participation
inthe global economy. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION added arefer-
ence to countrieswith economiesin transition. The EU suggested
del eting text oninequalitiesin income, wealth and equality obstructing
social justice and fostering social disintegration, and on avoiding

marginalization by extending the benefits of social and economic
development to all countries. The G-77/CHINA accepted del eting the
text on social justice, but not on extending benefits. The EU proposed
extending benefitsto avoid ongoing marginalization as opposed to
language on being condemned to marginalization. Del egates accepted
the EU proposal, and agreed on areferenceto acting to overcome
obstacles and realize opportunities.

In paragraph 5, on poverty eradication, employment and social
integration, MEX|CO suggested combining an EU proposal on full
and productive employment with G-77/CHINA text on fostering cohe-
sion and social solidarity within societies, adding referencetofairly
remunerated employment. The US agreed and proposed, with
NORWAY, inserting areference to full respect for workers' rights.
ALGERIA and CHINA opposed, citing inappropriate placement
within thedeclaration, and called for the text to remain focused on key
themeswithout elaboration. The text remains bracketed. EGY PT,
CHINA and SYRIA opposed EU language on good governance,
stating the term was unclear. Dispute over whether human rightsand
fundamental freedoms are prerequisitesfor, essential for or at the core
of social development remains unresolved. NORWAY proposed, with
support fromthe HOLY SEE, reference to development, democracy
and human rights asinterdependent and mutually reinforcing, and
ALGERIA, EGY PT and BANGLADESH opposed. The G-77/CHINA
proposed combining reference to achievements through social justice
and the right to devel opment with text on governance, including text
on peace and security. The EU agreed, adding referenceto gender
equality. With disagreement over placement, thetext remains brack-
eted.

In paragraph 6, on agreed effective implementation of the Copen-
hagen Declaration and POA being necessary at national and interna-
tional levels, the US specified full and effectiveimplementation, and
CANADA said implementation is necessary at “all” levels. Delegates
agreed to both proposal's. Reaching agreement on language referring to
responsibility for social development, delegates modified EU text,
reaffirming that while social development isanational responsibility,
it cannot be achieved without international community commitment.
Regarding international support, delegates settled on EU-amended
language inviting governments, the UN and other international organi-
zationsto strengthen the quality and consistency of their support for
sustainable development, particularly in Africa, the LDCs, and in
some countries with economiesin transition. Delegates accepted a G-
77/CHINA formulation stating that integrated, coherent and gender-
sensitive social, economic and environmental policiesarerequiredto
bridge goals and achievements. The group cleared the paragraph with
agreement on areferenceto striving to fulfill existing agreementsto an
ODA target of 0.7% of GNP.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates are wondering if the PrepCom isgoing back to the
future, with regular reliance on Copenhagen text. There's at least one
proposal to include language from the review and assessment of the
last fiveyearsin thefurther initiatives for the next five. Some delega-
tions prefer regularly shaving paragraphs from the ten Commitments,
maintaining this focuses the document. But others are asking what isit
focusing on? Delegates passed gingerly over afirst read of text on
unilateral measures; rumor saysit may betraded off for strong
language on the subject in the review document. Meanwhile, smiles
arewide over thedraft political declaration. Delegates are clipping
rapidly through the text, with many obstaclesto past negotiations
falling smoothly in the wake of clean paragraphs.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
WORKING GROUPS: Working Group | will meetin Conference
Room 2 at 11:00 am. Working Group I 11 will meet in Conference
Room 5 at 10:15 am. Informal consultations on paragraph 38 are
scheduled for 2:45 pm in the back of Conference Room 2. Working
Group I will meet in Conference Room 2 at 3:00 pm.



